
There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Paulina Ford on  as soon as possible.

AB
SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MONDAY 25 JANUARY 2016
7.00 PM

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of  Interest and Whipping Declarations

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification” that has been disclosed to the Monitoring Officer. 
Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration.

3. Minutes of Meeting held on 12 November 2015 3 - 10

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions

The decision notice for each decision will bear the date on which it is published 
and will specify that the decision may then be implemented on the expiry of 3 
working days after the publication of the decision (not including the date of 
publication), unless a request for call-in of the decision is received from any two 
Members of a Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Commissions.  If a request for 
call-in of a decision is received, implementation of the decision remains 
suspended for consideration by the relevant Scrutiny Committee or 
Commission.

5. Portfolio Progress Report for the Cabinet Member for Growth, 
Planning, Housing and Economic Development

11 - 16

6. Task and Finish Group Report - Review of Peterborough Strategic 
Housing Strategy

17 - 26

7. Local Transport Plan Programme of Works 2016/17 27 - 36

Public Document Pack



8. Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 37 - 60

9. Work Programme 61 - 66

10. Date of Next Meeting

Wednesday, 23 March 2016

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take 
photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the 
public. A protocol on this facility is available at: 

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%
20Recording.pdf

Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Committee Members:

Councillors: N Sandford (Chair), N Khan (Vice Chairman), M Jamil, D Over, R Brown, C Harper, R 
Bisby, J A Fox, J Whitby and L Ayres

Substitutes: Councillors: S Lane, M Nadeem, J Okonkowski, A Shaheed and L Forbes

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Paulina Ford on telephone  01733 
452508 or by email – paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk

file://demapp01/mgDataRoot/AgendaDocs/7/7/3/A00003377/$$Agenda.doc#http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf
file://demapp01/mgDataRoot/AgendaDocs/7/7/3/A00003377/$$Agenda.doc#http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf


AB
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT 

CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
 HELD IN THE BOUGES/VIERSEN ROOMS, TOWN HALL 

ON 12 NOVEMBER 2015

Present: Councillors Sandford (Chairman), N Khan MBE (Vice Chairman),
D Over,  R Brown, B Rush, J Stokes, J Okonkowski, M Jamil, JA 
Fox

Also Present: Councillor JR Fox, Group Leader, Werrington First
Councillor Elsey, Cabinet Member for Digital, Waste and Street 
Scene
Cllr North, Cabinet member for Communities & Environment Capital

Officers Present: Andy Tatt, Head of Peterborough Highways Services
James Collingridge, Amey Partnership Manager
Richard Pearn, Waste Partnership Manager
Richard Godfrey, Assistant Director Digital Peterborough
Charlotte Palmer, Environment, Transport and Future City Manager
Jon Petralanda, Environment Strategy Technical Officer
Gemma Wildman, Principal Planning Officer
Paulina Ford, Senior Democratic Services Officer

1. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies were received from Councillor Harper, Councillor Bisby and Councillor Whitby.  
Councillor Rush was in attendance as substitute for Councillor Harper, Councillor Stokes was 
in attendance for Councillor Bisby and Councillor Okonkowski was in attendance for 
Councillor Whitby.

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 

There were no declarations of interest or whipping declarations.

3. Minutes of Meetings held on 15 September 2015

The minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 2015 were approved as an accurate 
record.

4. Call in of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions

There were no requests for call-in to consider.

Chairman’s Announcement

The Chairman had received a request to move item 7, Portfolio Progress Report from the 
Cabinet Member for Digital Waste and Street Scene to the beginning of the agenda as the 
Cabinet Member would need to leave the meeting early to attend another council meeting.  
The Chairman asked the Committee if they would agree to this.  The Committee 
unanimously agreed to move item 7 to the first item on the agenda.

3



5. Portfolio Progress Report from the Cabinet Member for Digital Waste and Street Scene

The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Digital, Waste, and Street Scene.  The 
report provided the committee with an annual update on the progress of the digital and waste 
areas of the Cabinet Members portfolio. The Cabinet Member highlighted the following:

 Two Bigbelly bins were now in place in Cathedral Square.
 The recycling incentive scheme had been launched and 172 residents had signed up.
 The Digital Strategy was being rolled out across the council.  The council was now 

being seen as a leading example across the country.
 The energy recovery facility had now moved into the testing phase.

Questions and observations were made around the following areas:

 Had there been a decline in the use of the food waste bins.  Members were informed that 
there had been a decline and this was a national issue.  In times of austerity people tend 
to be more careful and therefore have less waste.  A reward scheme was being 
introduced with the introduction of free waste bags.  Schemes were also on trial in blocks 
of flats.

 Have alternatives to plastic bags been considered.  Members were informed that the 
alternative was already there in that people could use newspaper in the caddy.

 Members referred to page 37 and were pleased to see the graph showing recycling 
figures included in the report.  Whilst the graph did show that the total recycling and 
composting rates had fluctuated over a three year period it did  not appear to have 
improved much since April 2012.  The councils waste strategy states that it increase 
recycling to 65% by 2020.  What action was being taken to improve performance to 
achieve this target?  Members were informed that whilst work was being done to increase 
the amount of items being recycled the actual items often weighed less now due to being 
manufactured out of different materials, also there was a lot less paper being recycled 
due to digital media.  Different trends affected the amount of items to be recycled.  New 
schemes of recycling were continually being taken into account.

 The type of material that could go into the green bin had been expanded but this did not 
appear to have had much impact on recycling rates.  Members were advised that the new 
contract was signed in September but most of the advertising material went out in late 
October / early November which caused a slight delay in the performance.  Recycling 
was also cyclical e.g. there would be a lot more around Christmas time.

 Members were informed that the brown bin garden waste scheme did show a dip when 
the charging scheme was first brought in but then it rose again.  Garden waste was 
affected by seasonality.  

 Members commented that the council’s internet site had become easier to use.
 Members highlighted that there were still some areas to improve on with regard to the 

digital strategy e.g. work and private phones and not being able to use as one phone and 
having a central calendar showing all meetings.  Members were informed that MobileIron 
security on council phones enabled information on the phone to be cleared should the 
phone be lost or stolen.  It therefore meant that they could not be used for private use as 
well as this would mean that all private information would be wiped off the phone as well.  
The central calendar was currently being worked on. 

 Different IT packages were being looked at for Councillors to ensure the best package of 
IT equipment was issued.

ACTIONS AGREED

The Committee noted the report.

4



6. Update on Peterborough City Councils 2014/15 Carbon Emissions as Submitted Under 
Different Reporting Requirements

                
The report was introduced by the Environment Strategy Technical Officer and provided the 
Committee with an update on Peterborough City Councils 2014/15 carbon dioxide emissions.  
The emissions are reported as part of its mandatory participation in the Carbon Reduction 
Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme, the local authorities Greenhouse Gas Report 
(formerly NI 185) and to assess progress under the city council’s Carbon Management 
Action Plan. The Cabinet Member for Communities and Environment Capital and the 
Environment, Transport and Future City Manager were also in attendance.

Questions and observations were made around the following areas:

 Why were there no indicators around the city to show the levels of pollution?  The 
interactive screen on Long Causeway in the city centre could be used to provide this 
information.  Members were advised that the content on the interactive screens in Long 
Causeway was provided through the Peterborough DNA project and was designed by 
local residents.  Additionally as part of the Peterborough DNA project weather stations 
have been installed in schools across the city.  Schools were able to collect data about 
weather and air quality and young people were able to understand the impact of carbon 
emissions. New information and environmental statistics could be provided on the 
screens in due course but there was a cost incurred with each update.

 What was the most polluted area in the city?  Members were advised that the report did 
not relate to pollution.  The report related to carbon emissions from the council carrying 
out its day to day activities and its gas and electricity energy consumption.

 Where does the council get its electricity from?   Members were informed that most of the 
electricity came from the National Grid and when choosing a supplier one of the factors 
taken into consideration was the environmental factor.  Increasingly more electricity was 
being taken from the councils own renewable energy schemes.

7.37pm - Councillor Jamil left the meeting at this point.

 How is the carbon dioxide measured?  The Environment Strategy Technical Officer 
referred to the report which stated that there were two types of measurements and gave 
further explanation and context around these.

 Members sought clarification with regard to paying for carbon and what this meant.  
Members were informed that this related to a government scheme which had been 
introduced to try and decrease the carbon emissions across the UK.  All organisations 
that consumed a certain amount of energy were asked to take part in the scheme which 
was administered by the Environment Agency.  A calculation was made on the amount of 
carbon dioxide emissions each organisation used and a tariff applied accordingly as a 
form of tax.  The incentive was to reduce the carbon emissions and therefore reduce the 
amount of tax paid.

 The Cabinet Member informed the Committee that having the targets in place to reduce 
carbon emissions brought benefits to the city and to aspire to be the Environment Capital.

 Members referred to paragraph 5.3, table 2, Carbon Dioxide Emissions in the report.  
Why was the street lighting emissions increasing when new lighting had been put in place 
with the purpose of reducing emissions.  Members were informed that the street lighting 
consumption had reduced by 4% due to the installation of LED lighting but the overall 
emissions had increased because the conversion factor had changed.  The conversion 
factor had changed due to the change in the UK energy mix and had become more 
carbon intensive.  The overall trend was however downwards.

 Members noted that there were several ways of measuring carbon dioxide emissions and 
asked if there could be a focus on one measure like the Carbon Management Action Plan 
as this included clear targets.  Members were informed that there was a requirement to 
report against all areas listed in the report however future reports could focus more on 
the Carbon Management Action Plan.

5



 If electricity was purchased from certified renewable sources would this reduce the 
carbon emissions.   Members were advised that it would not make a difference as all 
electricity came from the National Grid.

ACTIONS AGREED

1. The Committee noted the report and requested the following information to be provided in 
a briefing note:

 The amount of renewable energy used by the council.
 Information on where the council sources its electricity from.

2. The consumption and conversion tables for carbon dioxide emissions to be provided in 
future reports and provide a focus on the Carbon Management Action Plan.

7. Portfolio Progress Report from the Cabinet Member for Communities & Environment  
Capital including Environment Capital Annual Report

The report was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Communities & Environment Capital 
which provided the Committee with an update on the progress of areas within his portfolio for 
Environment Capital and a progress report on the Environment Capital Action Plan.

Questions and observations were made around the following areas:

 Members referred to page 22 of the report and sought clarification on the Green Flag 
scheme.  Members were informed that the appropriateness of the award for open spaces 
was being reviewed as it did not always represent the good work undertaken in some 
areas of open space. An example was the Nene Park Trust and Ferry Meadows who had 
not reapplied for the award and had decided to focus on other accreditation schemes 
more suitable for country parks.

 Members noted and congratulated the initiative regarding the repurpose of hessian sacks 
and felt that initiatives like this should be promoted when Full Council was in attendance.

 Members commented on an initiative recently published regarding Grow your own food in 
open spaces including the possibility of roof space should be looked into further by the 
council.

 Members asked if fly tipping of garden waste had increased.  Officers did not have the 
information available and would find out and report back to the Committee.

 Members referred to page 30 and the Housing Stock survey which was rated as ‘Green’ 
and based on the Private Sector Stock Modelling report which had not been published 
yet.  How could the rating therefore be classed as ‘Green’.  Members were informed the 
target was due to be achieved by 2016 but the ‘Green’ status meant that it was on track 
to achieve this.   

 The Government’s target is to eradicate fuel poverty by 2016 but if the council did not 
know how many dwellings in Peterborough were in fuel poverty how can you assess if 
fuel poverty has been eradicated.  Members were informed that the target was to 
undertake a housing stock survey to ascertain homes in fuel poverty and this had been 
achieved.  The report was currently being reviewed and this could be shared with the 
Committee.

 Members referred to the Green Deal Community Fund and that it was due to end in 
September 2015.  It was noted that some of the suppliers had gone bankrupt and 
therefore not everyone targeted to benefit from this scheme had done so.  Could the 
scheme be extended?  What was being done to manage this?  Members were advised 
that a summary report on the actions to be taken would be provided to the Committee.

 Members referred to the Forest of Peterborough which had been successful.  Members 
had noted that 25,000 of the 84,000 trees had been planted in Burghley estate away from 
the city centre.  There had not been much of the Forest of Peterborough planted in the 

6



urban areas.  What more could be done to plant the trees closer to Peterborough.  The 
Cabinet Member responded that  he was working with the Natural and Historic 
Environment Manager to ensure the right type of trees were planted in the right areas of 
Peterborough.  A report on the tree canopy across the city and urban areas could be 
provided.

 Members referred to page 28 of the report and the statement “The council introduced five 
electric vehicles into its fleet….. 25,207 miles have been travelled so far, saving 4,137 kg 
of CO2e”.  Was this transferring the carbon dioxide emissions from one source of fuel to 
another?  Members were advised that this was correct but the carbon emissions were 
lower from electric cars.

RECOMMENDATION

The Committee recommended that the Cabinet Member for Communities & Environment 
Capital investigate the use of council land for food growing and to encourage allotment 
growers and  farmers to make available food not in demand by shops and supermarkets.
 
ACTIONS AGREED

The Committee noted the report and requested the following information:

 Data on fly tipping of garden waste.
 Report on the housing stock survey to ascertain homes in fuel poverty.
 Summary report on actions being taken with regard to the ending of the Green Deal 

Communities Fund.

8.      Peterborough Preliminary Draft Local Plan

The report was introduced by the Principal Planning Officer.  The report provided the 
Committee with a Preliminary Draft Local Plan for comment before being submitted to 
Cabinet for approval on 14 December 2015.

Questions and observations were made around the following areas:

 Members were concerned at what Peterborough might look like in 10 to 15 years’ time.  It 
was important to have a city with green areas, was well organised and had the right kind 
of housing.  The Local Plan should have a forward looking view to the future.

 Page 113, paragraph 4.35, “One or more new urban extension or other nearby large 
scale allocation may need to be allocated in this Local Plan and any suggestion as to 
where would be welcome”.  Had consideration been given to the A47 corridor west of 
Peterborough?  Members were informed that no sites had been identified yet and that 
was the next stage of the plan.  Developers would be asked to put forward suggested 
sites and a detailed transport assessment would be undertaken.

 Page 119, paragraph 4.48 regarding the River Nene. Had a bridge over the river been 
considered?  Members were informed that the adopted City Centre Plan set out a plan to 
connect the South Bank, Fletton Keys and the embankment. 

 Page 134 and the list of local centres.  No mention had been made to Cardea at 
Stanground.  Members were advised that it should have been included and would check 
into this.

 Page 151, Local Green Space.  It is mentioned in the report that local green space is a 
national designation.  If a council wanted to build on a piece of green space does national 
designation apply.  Members were informed that there was a strict criteria that had to be 
met for an area of green space to become a designated area.  The Local Plan is seeking 
suggestions for designated areas but once designated the default would be that it could 
not be built on.

7



 Page 153, paragraph 5.140, Green Wedges.  Members sought clarification regarding the 
area that separated Stanground from Farcet and the fact that part of it was owned by 
Huntingdon District Council.  Could this area still be protected by Peterborough City 
Council against development.  Members were informed that a small part of it was within 
Peterborough City Councils boundary.

 Could a Green Wedge be created between Peterborough and Kings Dyke, Whittlesey?  
Members were informed that the idea of a Green Wedge was to protect the coalescence 
of the urban area with nearby settlements.  It was not like a green belt policy.

 Page 167, paragraph 6.3, bullet point 2. Members noted the reference to ‘wildfire sites’ 
and sought clarification as to whether it should be ‘wildlife sites’.  The officer advised that 
it should be and would correct it.

 Page 181, Buildings of Local Importance, 118 High Street, Stanground South.  Members 
noted that this building should be listed as Fletton not Stanground South.  The Officer to 
correct this.

 Page 119, paragraph 4.49. “The transport network in and around the city centre currently 
prioritises accessibility by car at the expense of pedestrians and cyclists”.  Members 
urged the officer to liaise with people with disabilities before planning access across 
roads.

 Page 138, The Policies, bullet point 2, “Assist those with access and mobility difficulties”.  
Members again urged the officer to liaise with people with disabilities to seek advice on 
the appropriate access required.

 Page 134, The Policies, District Centres. How could District Centres be improved when 
they were not owned by the council.  Members were advised that it was up to the owners 
of the centres to improve the areas.

 Page 136, Transport and Infrastructure.  Members noted that there was more detail in the 
Local Plan on transport than in the current Local Transport Plan which was currently out 
for consultation.  Was this process being integrated into the Local Transport Plan?  
Members were advised that officers were working closely regarding the Local Transport 
Plan and Local Plan and information in the Local Plan has been taken from the new Local 
Transport Plan.

 Members asked the Officer to check the detail in the Local Transport Plan to ensure that 
the detail within the Local Plan was correct regarding Transport and Infrastructure.

 Page 138. Parking Standards.  Members noted that there was only one line of 
information on the various options and suggested that more detail be included.  Members 
were informed that there would be a sustainability report with more detail that would sit 
alongside the Local Plan.  The officer advised that an extra line of detail would be 
included to expand on the various parking options.

 Members requested that the Infrastructure Delivery Schedule be brought before scrutiny 
before going to Council.  The officer responded that this would be looked into.

 Page 162, paragraph 5.175, referring to the criteria for development proposals involving 
one or more wind turbines, namely that the site must be allocated in the development 
plan (either the Local Plan or a Neighbourhood Plan).  Members commented that very 
few areas in Peterborough had a Neighbourhood Plan.  The statement therefore meant 
that there could not be any renewable energy sites anywhere where there was no 
Neighbourhood Plan.  Members were informed that this referred to wind farms.  If a 
developer wanted to put up two or more wind turbines then a site would need to have 
been identified within either the Local Plan or Neighbourhood Plan.  No sites had 
currently been put forward but paragraph 5.176 did ask for views on this.

 There was no mention of cemetery sites in the Local Plan.  Members were advised that 
the Local Plan does ask for potential sites for cemeteries but the officer would check this.

 Members were advised that a document would be created listing all suggested sites and 
a task group would be formed to go through the suggested sites to assist with 
determining which sites should be ruled out.

8



RECOMMENDATION

The Committee noted the report and recommended that the Principal Planning Officer take 
into consideration all comments raised by the Committee for inclusion in the Draft Local Plan.

9.      Revised Peterborough Statement of Community Involvement

The report was introduced by the Principal Planning Officer.  The report provided the 
Committee with the revised Statement of Community Involvement for comment before being 
presented to Cabinet for approval on 14 December 2015.

Questions and observations were made around the following areas:

 Members were informed that a Neighbourhood Plan would become part of the 
Development Plan and would therefore be taken into consideration with any planning 
application.  If there was a High Court appeal after a planning application with a 
Neighbourhood Plan was refused the responsibility would lie with the council not the 
Parish Council.

 How many Parish’s or groups have completed a Neighbourhood Plan.  Members were 
advised that 7 areas had been dedicated and Peakirk would currently developing one.

 Members commented that the process for producing a Neighbourhood Plan was quite 
complex was there anything more that the council could do to support the development of 
the plans.  Members were advised that the support was limited due to costs and 
resourcing but there were grants that Parish Councils could apply for.

ACTION AGREED

The Committee noted the report.

10.      Forward Plan of Executive Decisions

The Committee received the latest version of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions, 
containing key decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the Cabinet or individual 
Cabinet Members would make during the course of the following month.  Members were 
invited to comment on the Forward Plan and where appropriate identify any relevant areas 
for inclusion in the Committee’s work programme.

ACTIONS AGREED

The Committee noted the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions and requested further 
information on the following:

 Real Time Passenger Information – KEY/10JUL15/02
 Future of America Farm Solar and Wind Project – KEY/02OCT15/02

9. Work Programme 2015/2016

Members considered the Committee’s Work Programme for 2015/16 and discussed possible 
items for inclusion.

ACTION AGREED

To confirm the work programme for 2015/16 and the Senior Democratic Services Officer to 
include any additional items as requested during the meeting.

The meeting began at 7.00pm and ended at 9.20pm CHAIRMAN

9



This page is intentionally left blank

10



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT 
CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 5

25 JANUARY 2016 Public Report

Report of the Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing and Economic 
Development

Contact Officer(s) – Simon Machen, Director of Growth and Regeneration
Contact Details – 01733 453475 simon.machen@peterborough.gov.uk 

PORTFOLIO PROGRESS REPORT FOR THE CABINET MEMBER FOR GROWTH, PLANNING, 
HOUSING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

1. PURPOSE

1.1 This report is provided to update the Committee on the progress of items under the 
responsibility of the Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing and Economic 
Development

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Committee is asked to note the report and provide comments accordingly.

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 

3.1 This report supports the Sustainable Community Strategy by highlighting progress and change 
across a range of indicators and measures related to the Strategy’s objectives:

• Creating opportunities and tackling inequalities
• Creating strong and supportive communities
• Creating the UK’s Environment Capital
• Delivering substantial and truly sustainable communities 

4.

4.1

BACKGROUND

This report forms the annual progress report of the Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, 
Housing and Economic Development. The report is structured around each of those 
elements.

The responsibilities of this Portfolio Holder are clearly linked to the Council’s stated vision:
The Council’s vision is to create a bigger and better Peterborough that grows the right way, 
and through truly sustainable development and growth:

• improves the quality of life of all its people and communities, and ensures that all 
communities benefit from growth and the opportunities it brings; and

• creates a truly sustainable Peterborough, the urban centre of a thriving sub-regional 
community of villages and market towns, a healthy, safe and exciting place to live, 
work and visit, famous as the environment capital of the UK.

5. PROGRESS REPORTS

Growth

5.1 The sustainable growth of the city remains a clear priority of the Council, with Director 
responsibility falling to the Director of Growth and Regeneration (post holder: Simon Machen). 
The Director is responsible for delivering Peterborough's sustainable growth, for securing the 

11

mailto:simon.machen@peterborough.gov.uk


5.2

5.3

5.4

regeneration of the city centre and for maintaining and improving our road and sustainable 
transport infrastructure. The Council’s property function has also recently transferred to the 
Directorate. The approach of the Directorate is a focus on commissioning solutions and 
services from in-house council services, Opportunity Peterborough, our highway services 
provider Skanska and the Council’s joint venture company, the Peterborough Investment 
Partnership. 

As Director he is supported by Heads of Service who are responsible for day-to-day operational 
matters, and by the Head of Growth Delivery who works inside the Peterborough Investment 
Partnership and provides wider advice and input into other joint venture options.

Specific progress on growth matters over the past 12 months or so includes:

 The completion of 1,342 new homes in 2014/15, the highest for over 20 years

 Recognition of Peterborough as the UK’s fastest growing city (source: 
http://www.centreforcities.org/assets/files/2014/Cities_Outlook_2014.pdf) 

 Several major planning approvals, to further boost our pipeline of development coming 
forward, including:

 350 units at Hampton Heights
 130 units off London Rd – Abbey Homes
 86 units off Oundle Rd – Persimmon Homes
 56 bed care home, Eastfield Rd
 280 units at Fletton Quays

These permission compliment the already extant major permissions, such as Hampton 
and Great Haddon.

 There has been a significant amount of commercial activity with the grant of planning 
permission for two major mixed use city centre schemes (North Westgate and an 
extension to the Queensgate shopping centre) as well as the more recently approved 
Fletton Quays scheme. Other major commercial activity includes:

 Mezzanine floor and extensions at Serpentine Green Shopping Centre
 170,000 sqm of warehousing at Alwalton Hill (Roxhill)
 3000 sqm extension at Perkins
 3000 sqm office, storage and distribution buildings at Kingston Park
 5300 sq m Head office and distribution centre for Supermax healthcare at 

Kingston Park
 2100 sqm Head office and distribution centre for Vogal Group at Kingston Park

 Work has commenced clearing the former City Hospital site which will make way for a 
major new residential development close to the core of the city centre and a new 
primary school.  

 Under the Government’s more relaxed planning rules for the conversion of offices to 
flats, we have seen a number of schemes come forward, the largest one being 
Hereward Tower which is nearing completion and has dramatically transformed the 
appearance of the building.

Towards the end of 2015 the City Council entered into a shared planning service 
arrangement with Fenland District Council. This reduces management cost through the 
sharing of a single Head of Service and pooled staff. The arrangement has been in operation 
since November 2015 and work has begun on testing IT systems to facilitate the co-location of 
the two Administration Teams. The mutual buying in of planning services in from each other has 
begun.

12

http://www.centreforcities.org/assets/files/2014/Cities_Outlook_2014.pdf


5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

Several development schemes saw success at the Eastern Region Local Authority Building 
Control Awards which qualified them for the Nationals but unfortunately there were no 
Peterborough winners. However, it was good to see that the area was well represented at the 
awards.

Both Building Control and the Development Management teams maintained recognition for 
customer service with the renewal of their Quality Assurance and Customer Service 
Excellence Awards.  External recognition of the quality of service we provide helps give our 
customers confidence in what we do day in and day out and positive customer feedback helps 
us retain good market share in Building Control (which competes with private sector providers) 
and the creation of mutually beneficial working relationships. Over 100 people have attended 
Building Control seminars.

These awards and customer satisfaction helps demonstrate that growth is quality growth, 
helping Peterborough deliver schemes that enhance and improve Peterborough as a place. 

Turning to the Council’s own direct contribution to growth and development, the Peterborough 
Investment Partnership has worked to develop a commercially deliverable scheme for Fletton 
Quays and take this through the planning process as an external applicant.  Following the usual 
consultation and engagement processes, the outline application was approved unanimously on 
the 8 December.  This is a major milestone, not just as the Partnership’s first major scheme 
planning permission (a milestone achieved within its first year of operation), but also for a site 
that has lain dormant for far too long.  

Alongside on-going work to ensure the delivery of the Fletton Quays scheme as rapidly as 
practically possible, the Partnership is also beginning the scoping and commercial market 
exploration for the next schemes it takes forward.  These will come forward in the usual way, 
with an application submitted to the Council just like any other developer at the appropriate 
time.

Turning to Transport related aspect of growth, we have made considerable investment in 
infrastructure. For example, following the success of the A1139 Fletton Parkway, Bourges 
Boulevard Phase 1 and Long Causeway schemes works are due to commence shortly on two 
further major transport schemes, Junction 20 of the A47 (a capacity improvement scheme to 
help unlock the Norwood and Paston Reserve development sites) and Bourges Boulevard 
Phase 2 (a continuation of the public realm improvements delivered in phase 1 between, 
Crescent Bridge roundabout and Bishops Road). The Council has been successful in securing 
£15.5 million of grant funding to deliver the aforementioned schemes over the next 4 years. 

In addition to these major schemes the Council has continued to deliver smaller capital 
improvements through the integrated transport programme including a new signalised 
pedestrian crossing at Norwood primary school, significant parking and pedestrian 
improvements on Central Avenue and safety schemes including a new roundabout at Staniland 
Way and a junction improvements at Broadway and Princes Gardens. We have upgraded bus 
infrastructure, both at the Queensgate Bus Station and along core bus routes, with the 
introduction of raised kerbs. In conjunction with the introduction of new shelters at key stops in 
Peterborough, this promotes accessibility to bus services and furthers the commitment to 
making public transport an attractive option. Werrington and Bretton have recently seen a 
number of stop upgrades as part of the integrated transport programme There is also a 
considerable walking and cycling improvement scheme that will be constructed in Eastfield 
Road and it is our intention that we will continue with these corridor approaches for different 
areas in future years.

The fourth Local Transport Plan is nearing its final stage and will include further details of 
infrastructure improvements that will be required over the next 5 years. In addition, following the 
Spending Review, Treasury have announced £300m for cycling and £580m for the Local 
Sustainable Transport Fund and the Council is awaiting further details on how we can bid for a 
share of this money.

13



5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

As well as investing in infrastructure, maintaining our major transport assets aligns directly 
with the city’s sustainable growth agenda with the delivery of major maintenance projects 
across the city essential to ensure the city is able to accommodate further economic 
development whilst providing transport resilience for years to come. The 2015/16 Highway 
Maintenance Programme has been delivered in full by Peterborough Highway Services. For the 
third year running the programme has included a large surface treatment programme that aims 
to arrest deterioration by sealing road and footway surfaces from the elements: Such 
preventative maintenance programmes are an essential part of any maintenance strategy and 
demonstrate good asset management. In 2016 both Nene Parkway and Longthorpe Parkway 
are due to be resurfaced in full; these timely interventions will extend the life of the asset, avoid 
higher maintenance costs in future years whilst ensuring network availability and safety are 
preserved.

This year new LED lighting has been incorporated into as many capital schemes as possible 
to enable efficiencies whilst occupying a site. The LEDs provide a greater quality of light using 
fewer lumens in comparison to their orange light equivalents resulting in both carbon and 
energy savings. 

Other important improvements include work on structures. During 2015/16 Peterborough 
Highway Services have delivered bridge schemes to enhance safety on rural roads, by 
removing the risk of significant drops into water-filled ditches at bridges with substandard 
parapets. These bridges have also benefitted from strengthening through the refurbishment to 
increase their condition rating and enhanced serviceable life. Other works have included 
intrusive investigation works to deteriorating jack arches on Crescent Bridge, one of 
Peterborough’s most significant structures carrying a busy route over the East Coast Mainline 
into the City. Also working closely with Network Rail on Westwood footbridge to replace the 
parapets with higher ones to enable the electrification of a significant rail scheme related to the 
Thameslink.  Preliminary design and investigation works are currently ongoing in readiness for 
the smooth delivery of future schemes identified in Peterborough’s forward plans to promote 
growth and sustain current levels of safe, accessibility in and around the City.

Strategic Planning 

The Council’s strategic planning services was formally recognised nationally by its peers for its 
quality service and efficient plan making, when it won the prestigious Royal Town Planning 
Institute (RTPI) national ‘Team of the Year 2015’ award.

Peterborough’s Local Plan is relatively up to date and compatible with recent radical changes 
to national planning policy. The final piece of the Local Plan jigsaw, the City Centre Plan, was 
adopted in December 2014. However, to ensure the Local Plan remains up to date, Cabinet 
agreed in July 2015 to commence a new, single Local Plan, extending the plan period to 2036. 
By December 2015, Cabinet agreed the first round draft of that new emerging plan, consultation 
upon which is scheduled to have commenced on 15 January 2016.

Our quality strategic planning service continues to be sold to nearby councils, with major 
contracts in place with Central Lincolnshire (Lincoln / West Lindsey / North Kesteven), East 
Cambridgeshire and Fenland. As well as raising our profile and maintaining expertise for 
Peterborough in the field of strategic planning, these contracts bring in a valuable income to the 
Council.

We also put in place a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) for Peterborough in April 2015. 
This gives developers much needed certainty in terms of what contributions they will need to 
make to support the growth of the City, as well as providing the Council with a multi-million 
pound pot to spend on improving the city’s infrastructure to support growth. However, the Levy 
will not provide all the funding we need for infrastructure, and significant receipts will not be 
received for 2-3 years. As such, the Council remains focussed on securing additional funding 
from a wide variety of sources (such as the LEP, HCA and other government initiatives).

Interest in ‘neighbourhood planning’ continues to grow in Peterborough, with seven areas 

14



5.21

5.22

5.23

5.24

5.25

5.26

5.27

5.28

5.29

5.30

now designated, at the request of the applicable parish council, as ‘Neighbourhood Areas’. 
Such designation triggers the process for preparing a parish-led Neighbourhood Plan, and 
officers continue to assist in that process as appropriate. 

Strategic Housing 

The council’s current Housing Strategy is now due for review and a ‘Task and Finish’ group 
has been set up under the direction of the Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital 
Scrutiny Committee to work more closely with officers preparing the Strategy. However, the 
production of the final refreshed strategy will await the outcome of the national Housing and 
Planning Bill, currently going through parliament. The far reaching proposals for future housing 
delivery, particularly affordable housing delivery, has led to the conclusion that the strategy 
should await the outcome of the proposals put forward in the Bill before determining the final 
content of the first draft of the document for public consultation. 

As well as market housing the Council continues to target the delivery of affordable homes 
with a record 507 completed in 2014/15 accounting for 37.5% of the total of new homes 
delivered. 

The Housing Strategy team continue to deliver a housing service to Fenland District Council 
and more recently now also provides Housing Strategy and Enabling services to East Cambs 
District Council. Once again, this raises our profile, retains valuable skills in-house and brings in 
a valuable income to the Council.

We continue to explore wider strategic housing initiatives, including how the Council could 
become actively involved in housing delivery. Scrutiny Committee will of course be involved in 
that process, should a positive proposal emerge. 

We also continue to explore best value for the £multi-million affordable housing capital fund, 
built up from right-to-buy receipts and s106 contributions. Again, any proposed change to 
Council policy in this regard will be considered by Scrutiny Committee before implementation.

Economic Development and Business Engagement

Claimant count figures continue to fall as economic confidence in the city continues to rise. The 
latest figures for claimant count stand at 1,680, and has shown a steady continuing downward 
trend. Taking a broader view, this compares to 5,587 (4.7%) in July 2013.

This economic growth is boosted by both existing companies expanding, where we have seen 
growth in a broad range of sectors, and new companies coming to the city. Local property 
agents are recording high levels of deals going through on commercial and industrial premises, 
which again reflects that economic confidence in the city.

It is important to continue to raise the profile of Peterborough through engagement with external 
agencies. The relationship with the Local Enterprise Partnership (GCGP LEP) is developing 
well, building off collaborative work around funding bids. Peterborough’s relationship with UKTI 
is also exceptionally strong, with recent showcasing to the Government’s trade and investment 
arm of some of Peterborough’s key sectors (environmental companies, and food and drink 
businesses). These links will continue to be exploited for both export and inward investment 
opportunities. 

It is clear that focusing on particular sectors can reap benefits: the inward investment campaign 
to attract new restaurants and retailers to Peterborough has generated considerable investment 
since its inception in 2011. Whilst all sectors will be supported, opportunities to target particular 
groups will be developed, such as digital companies, to exploit the superfast speeds of the 
gigabit provision from Peterborough core.

Peterborough is also featuring on the national and international map through its work on the 
Future Cities Demonstrator programme, recently winning the international ‘Smart City of the 

15



5.31

Year’ award. Not only are local companies receiving support to bring innovative products to 
market, but through its component parts (the Brainwave portal, and Smart Fengate business 
approach) the city itself is becoming recognised within central government and across UK cities 
for its approaches to the ‘Smart City’ agenda.

We also need to ensure that we have a workforce fit for the future. The Skills Service, which 
was pioneered in Peterborough, is now being delivered by Opportunity Peterborough across the 
northern-LEP area (Rutland, Peterborough, Fenland and Kings Lynn), funded by the LEP.

6. IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report. It is provided for information and 
comment.

7. CONSULTATION

7.1 This document has been produced in collaboration with colleagues across the Growth and 
Regeneration Directorate.

8. NEXT STEPS

8.1 Headline next steps are outlined in the commentary above. Should Scrutiny Committee seek 
further detail on any aspect described in this report, then a subsequent more detailed report will 
be made available.

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

9.1 None.

10. APPENDICES

10.1 None.

16



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT 
CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 6

25 JANUARY 2015 Public Report

Interim Report of the Housing Strategy Review Task and Finish Group

Contact Officer(s) – Anne Keogh, Housing and Strategic Planning Manager, and, Caroline 
Hannon, Senior Housing Strategy and Enabling Officer   
Contact Details – anne.keogh1@peterborough.gov.uk, 01733 863815 and  
caroline.hannon@peterborough.gov.uk, 01733 863818

HOUSING STRATEGY REVIEW TASK AND FINISH GROUP REPORT

1. PURPOSE

1.1

1.2

1.3

This report is submitted as a Progress Report to Committee following the Task and Finish 
Group’s review of the existing Housing Strategy and formulation of initial recommendations 
regarding the priorities for the next Housing Strategy. 

The timetable for producing a refreshed Housing Strategy has been extended due to the 
publication of the Housing and Planning Bill in October 2015. The far reaching proposals for 
future housing delivery, particularly affordable housing delivery, has led to the conclusion that 
the Strategy should await the outcome of the proposals put forward in the Bill before 
determining the final content of the first draft of the document for public consultation. A 
refreshed timetable for delivering the Strategy will be agreed in due course.  

The purpose of this report is to provide an interim update and to note progress of the Task and 
Finish Group. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 This Committee is asked to consider and comment on the Task and Finish Group’s interim 
report and recommendations regarding the priorities for the next Housing Strategy. 

     LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 

3.1 This report falls within the priorities of creating Strong and Supportive communities and 
Sustainable Growth and Environment as detailed in the Sustainable Community Strategy.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1

4.2

At a  meeting of Full Council on 15 April 2015, Councillor Thulbourn put forward the following 
motion which was approved;

“That this Council notes that social housing was transferred to partners in 2003 and the 
strategy of the Council has not been reviewed since.
 
I respectfully ask that this Council creates a cross party review of the present strategy 
and to consult and create a new fit for purpose strategy recommendation that reflects 
our changing city to enable a future proof and resilient strategy going forward.
 
The provision of social housing has changed significantly since 2003 and update of what 
social housing could and should be achieving, and delivering, is long overdue”.

 
 A recommendation was agreed to establish a task and finish group to oversee the 

17

mailto:anne.keogh1@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:caroline.hannon@peterborough.gov.uk


4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

development of a refreshed Strategy. The current Housing Strategy was adopted in February 
2012 with a stated term from 2011-15 and therefore the timing of the review worked well for the 
timetable for updating the Strategy. 

The Task and Finish Group was established at a meeting of the Sustainable Growth and 
Environment Capital Scrutiny meeting on 10 June 2015.  The Terms of Reference are attached 
at Appendix 1. The cross party Task and Finish group comprises of the following members:
• Cllr Thulbourn (Chair) - Labour
• Cllr Saltmarsh – Liberal Party
• Cllr Davidson – Liberal Democrats
• Cllr Whitby - UKIP
• Cllr JA Fox -  Independent
• Cllr Bisby - Conservative

Officers supporting the Task and Finish Group are:
• Anne Keogh, Housing & Strategic Planning Team Manager  - Lead Officer
• Caroline Hannon, Housing Strategy and Enabling Officer 
• Paulina Ford, Senior Democratic Services Officer

The Task and Finish Group used the following methodology:
• Research 
• Discussions with Key Officers

o Belinda Child, Head of Housing and Health Improvement 
o Simon Machen, Corporate Director for Growth and Regeneration
o Anne Keogh, Housing & Strategic Planning Team Manager  
o Caroline Hannon, Housing Strategy and Enabling Officer 

The following initial baseline information was used to inform the review of the existing Housing 
Strategy and recommendations regarding the priorities for the next Housing Strategy:
• Current Housing Strategy
• Director of Public Health’s Annual Report 2015
• GL Hearn – Peterborough Sub-Regional Strategic Housing Market Assessment
• A report on the Private Housing Market in Peterborough in context.  Information taken from 

the Peterborough Sub-Regional Strategic Market Assessment (SHMA) published in July 
2014.

• Financial tools to assist Housing in Peterborough  - provided by Steven Pilsworth
• Housing Strategy Statement 2016-2020

Summary of tables provided: 
• Existing housing providers.  An annual report from DCLG.
• Existing housing – urban. A PCC survey of large Registered Housing Providers (Social 

Housing) in Peterborough.
• Existing housing – rural. A PCC survey of large Registered Housing Providers (Social 

Housing) in Peterborough, providing a breakdown of stock in each village.
• Annual newbuilds including tenure. An overview of the rate of newbuild affordable 

completions in Peterborough each year for the last ten years.
• Annual newbuilds – active Registered Providers.  Provided information on how many new 

homes were provided by each Housing Association. Key partners were Cross keys, 
Longhurst & Havelock and Axiom.

• Cross Keys Homes delivery. PCC records show since 2007/8 Cross Keys Homes had 
delivered 1086 new homes in Peterborough.

• Supported housing.  Information taken from the Adult Social Care Market Position 
Statement.

• Affordable Housing provided by private sector agreements.  

The timetable of the events leading to the production of this interim report is set out below:
• 14 July 2015 - Initial Meeting of the Task and Finish Group to establish what information 

would be required to inform the review.
• 17 August 2015 – Task and Finish Group meeting with officers to consider information 

18



provided that was requested by the group.
• 6 October 2015 – Meeting of Task and Finish Group members to create the draft 

conclusions and recommendations of the group.
• 9 November 2015 – Discussion around conclusions and recommendations with officers and 

next steps.

5. KEY ISSUES

5.1 The recommendations of the Task and Finish Group set out within the Interim Progress Report 
do not take into accountant changes to Legislation that may arise from the enactment of the 
Housing and Planning Bill. Therefore the Group’s recommendations may change or develop as 
the development of the draft Housing Strategy progresses.

6. IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no Financial or Legal implications at this stage as this report is an interim report on 
the progress of the Task and Finish Group.

7.

7.1

CONSULTATION

None required at this stage.

8.

8.1

NEXT STEPS

Prepare a final report of the Task and Finish Group as the draft Housing Strategy document 
progresses.

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

9.1 See list above of base line information used to prepare this interim progress report.

10. APPENDICES

10.1 Appendix A – Terms of Reference of Task and Finish Group.
Appendix B – Interim progress report.

19



This page is intentionally left blank

20



APPENDIX A
Scrutiny Task and Finish Group

Review of the existing Housing Strategy and consult and create a new fit for purpose Strategy

Terms of Reference
June 2015

1.0 Purpose of the Task and Finish Group
The purpose of the Task and Finish Group is to influence the formation of the Peterborough Housing 

Strategy 2016-19 to ensure it is a cross-tenure, over-arching document that will establish a broad range 

of housing-related priorities for the city. 

2.0 Role of the Task and Finish Group
The role of the Task and Finish Group is to discuss the significant local and national housing issues 

which affect Peterborough.  To oversee establishment of a Delivery Group and to guide the Group to 

consider solutions to address the most pressing housing matters and to endorse the recommendations 

of the Delivery Group.

3.0 Responsibilities of the Task and Finish Group
Members of the Task and Finish Group will shape the production of the Housing Strategy document 

which will set the housing-related agenda for the city over the next four years. Ownership of the 

production of the Peterborough Housing Strategy 2016-19 will rest with the Delivery Steering Group.

A Delivery Steering Group will be established to ensure effective engagement with key partners.  The 

Delivery Steering Group will be made up of representatives with a specific stake in housing-focused 

services within Peterborough from homelessness through to growth.

The Task and Finish Group will oversee the development of the priorities for the Peterborough Housing 

Strategy 2016-19. Once priorities have been finalised, a draft strategy will be produced based around 

these themes. The Task and Finish Group will then continue to meet for the purposes of:

 Shaping the Peterborough Housing Strategy 2016-19 and associated action plan, at each stage 

in the process

 Discussing progress on the production of the document

 Providing a steer on any issues that arise throughout the strategy production and consultation 

process

 Signing off an agreed draft document ready for wider consultation

 Supporting the Housing Strategy to be adopted through the democratic processes.

4.0 Membership of the Task and Finish Group 

21



APPENDIX A
Membership of the group will consist of elected Members from across the political groups to ensure 

cross party representation and officer representation from Anne Keogh, Housing and Strategic Planning 

Manager as Lead Officer, Caroline Hannon, Senior Housing Strategy and Enabling Officer as the officer 

with day-to-day responsibility for the coordination and production of the Peterborough Housing Strategy 

and Chair of the Delivery Group and Belinda Child, Head of Housing and Health Improvement as a key 

internal stakeholder. 

The Task and Finish Group will be disbanded once a draft version of the refreshed Housing Strategy has 

been agreed for wider consultation. 

22



APPENDIX B
Scrutiny Task and Finish Group

Interim Progress Report:
Review of the existing Housing Strategy

Recommended priorities of the next Housing Strategy
Further considerations regarding Housing Delivery 

Membership
Cllr Thulbourn (Chair) – Labour
Cllr Saltmarsh – Liberal Party
Cllr Davidson – Liberal Democrats
Cllr Whitby – UKIP
Cllr JA Fox -  Independent
Cllr Bisby – Conservative

23



APPENDIX B

Scope:
The Task and Finish Group decided that a strategic approach to shaping the next Peterborough Housing 
Strategy and understanding the remit of a Housing Strategy would be needed to understand where 
change could be implemented to improve the outcomes for the residents of Peterborough.

Process:
The initial process was to understand and identify the pressure points on housing in Peterborough.
The Task and Finish Group members received information and advice from the supporting officers to 
inform the group’s understanding of where the Housing Strategy can impact upon the pressures, with a 
view to formulating a broad consensus on possible solutions and investigating these solutions.
Our aim was to create a set of solutions that are deliverable within the frame work of the next Housing 
Strategy while ensuring at all times we maintain a strategic approach.

Overview:
The Task and Finish Group concluded that there are two main areas of housing pressure for people in 
Peterborough. Firstly, there are not enough new homes being built across all sectors and types of 
housing; Secondly, there should be more opportunity for people to manage their own environment and   
access information and support from the  council  to enable them to maintain and improve the standard 
of their home.

 In response to these issues we recommend that the council creates new financing models enabling the 
council and social landlords to build more housing and importantly to build relationships with private 
sector developers and create partnerships. We want to ensure the Housing Strategy and Local Plan set 
clear priorities and a statement of intent to deliver significantly more housing. We recommend that the 
Housing Strategy reinforces the need to provide new housing which meets a wide range of supported 
and specialist housing needs. This will provide a clear indication to funding bodies that the delivery of 
this type of housing is a priority and will also provide a clear direction to housing providers about the 
types of accommodation which are considered to be in demand. 

To give residents more control over their environment we recommend that the Housing Strategy 
provides a new local connections policy which will be applied on Rural Exception Sites and which will 
prioritise the allocation of all rented homes on these sites to households who currently live in or have a 
strong local connection to the locality. We also recommend that the council produces a “Charter of 
Housing Standards” so that residents can understand what standards they can expect in terms of 
housing conditions. Whether a social rented home, privately rented house, owner occupier or a 
developer there should be clear and transparent standards that can be implemented by residents 
themselves where appropriate, or enforced by the council where necessary.

 
Recommendations for the Priorities of the next Housing Strategy

To deliver new financial tools to enable the delivery of new homes

(a) The council to finance and build new homes to meet specific needs and create a revenue stream.
(b) The council to help finance more building of affordable rented housing by supporting housing 

associations with access to finance
(c) The council to partner with private housing development companies to deliver finance and 

therefore influence with the aim of improving delivery timeframes.
(d) The new Housing Strategy could monitor the target for new homes in the existing Local Plan and 

ultimately the new Local Plan once that has been examined by the Planning Inspectorate and 
adopted by the council.

To support a local delivery model -

24



APPENDIX B

(e) The Housing Strategy to reinforce the need to provide new housing which meets a wide range of 
supported and specialist housing needs. This will provide a clear indication to funding bodies that 
the delivery of this type of housing is a priority and will also provide a clear direction to housing 
providers about the types of accommodation which are considered to be in demand.

(f) The Housing Strategy to provide a new local connections policy which will be applied on Rural 
Exception Sites and which will prioritise the allocation of all rented homes on these sites to 
households who currently live in or have a strong local connection to the locality.

Performance: To ensure the strategy has transparent targets and enforcement-

(g) A charter of minimum standards to be created and published enabling residents of Peterborough 
to clearly understand and self-enforce these minimum standards.

(h) Performance review of the housing strategy including easily accessible regular reporting.

Further considerations from the Task and Finish Group

1. The working group would ask that the following is noted and considered. 
The Housing Strategy does not set housing targets it is the preserve solely of the Local Plan. 
However as part of the process of reviewing the Housing Strategy the Working Group has 
defined what they believe are the housing needs of Peterborough both as an overall number of 
new housing over the next 5 years but also the type of housing.

(a) 12,000 new homes need to be built in the City over the next 5 years
(b) A breakdown of the requirements defined by the working group

i/ Affordable Rent Housing 40%
ii/ Affordable to Buy Housing   35%
iii/ Health Housing             8%
iv/ Executive Housing             12%
v/ Prestige Housing              5%
Affordable Rent Housing – this is property to rent at prescribed affordable rents
Affordable to buy – property from £0 - £180k
Health Housing – Pensioner, Disabled & Care etc.
Executive- property from £180k - £300k
Prestige – property from £300k upwards

25



This page is intentionally left blank

26



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT 
CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 7

25 JANUARY 2016 Public Report

Report of the Corporate Director Growth and Regeneration

Contact Officer(s) – Amy Petrie, Director of Growth and Regeneration, and Andy Tatt, Head of 
Peterborough Highway Services
Contact Details – 01733 452272 and 01733 453469 

LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN PROGRAMME OF WORKS 2016/17

1. PURPOSE

1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide information regarding the Local Transport Plan (LTP) 
Programme of Works 2016/17 to the Committee before being submitted to the Cabinet Member 
for Growth, Strategic Planning, Housing, Economic Development and Business Engagement.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 To consider the proposed Local Transport Plan Programme of Works for 2016/17 and to 
comment on the programme prior to its submission to the Cabinet Member for Planning and 
Housing Services. 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 

3.1

3.2

The programme has a positive impact on the following Community Strategy objectives: 

 Creating opportunities - tackling inequalities
 Creating strong and supportive communities
 Creating the UK’s environment capital
 Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth

 The Local Transport Plan contributes to the following National Indicators: 

 Principal road condition
 Non-Principal classified road condition
 Total killed and seriously injured
 Child killed and seriously injured
 Public transport patronage
 Bus punctuality
 Congestion
 Air quality

4. BACKGROUND

4.1 The Department for Transport (DfT) calculates the block allocation for highways maintenance 
for each local authority using a need based formula. This is based on several factors including; 
total road length by classification and condition; the number of bridge structures and whether 
they require significant maintenance or strengthening; and the number of street lighting 
columns over 40 years old. The block funding for small integrated transport improvement 
schemes is also available for supporting development in less prosperous areas; improving road 
safety statistics; public transport patronage; traffic congestion; accessibility; and tackling 
pollution.  

27



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

The Council expects to be awarded a total of £4,581K transport settlement for 2016/17 
comprising of £1,407k Integrated Transport Block Grant and £3,174K Capital Maintenance 
Block Grant.

In addition to the £4,581K in 4.2 the Council is expected to continue to allocate additional 
funding of £1,777k to support the maintenance of the highway network, which has been 
included in the transport funding allocation detailed in Table 1 below: 

Table 1-Proposed Allocation of Funding 

The Council budget for 2016/17 has not yet been finalised and it should be noted that the 
programme of works included in this document is an outline proposal.  The number of schemes 
delivered will be adapted as further information regarding the funding available for the 
programme becomes clear.  As with the development of this programme schemes will be 
added or deleted as required based on a clear “needs based” prioritisation basis.

The Department for Transport has set aside £578 million for an Incentive Fund scheme, to 
reward councils who demonstrate they are delivering value for money in carrying out cost 
effective improvements. Each local highway authority (excluding London) will be invited to 
complete a self-assessment questionnaire, in order to establish the share of the Incentive Fund 
they will be eligible for in 2016/17. This allocation has not been finalised and consequently 
some of the figures in 4.3 may change, including the possibility that the corporate allocation 
could be reduced. 

2016-17 Programme Categories £k
LTP Integrated Transport Block £1,516
Highways Maintenance £3,376
Street Lighting Maintenance £500
Bridge Maintenance £966
Total £6,358

5. KEY ISSUES

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

To consider the details of the indicative programme of works proposed to be carried out in 
2016/17 for the following reasons:

The street lighting replacement programme, is required to replace old columns and, at the same 
time, provide benefit through saving on the Council’s energy payments as new low energy 
lanterns are also installed. The streets included in the 2016/2017 replacement programme will 
be prioritised from the results of the 2015/2016 structural and electrical testing programme, it is 
anticipated that these will be completed in February 2016. This ensures that streets with high 
volumes of degraded columns are addressed first reducing potential health and safety issues 
and maintenance requirements. 

Appendices B and C, Highway Maintenance Programme and Bridge Maintenance Programme, 
are undertaken on an assessment basis as the Council has a legal obligation under the 
Highways Act 1980 to maintain the public highway network in a safe and passable condition. 

The Integrated Transport Plan block funding enhances the network for all forms of transport and 
is calculated following assessments, in addition to being aligned to the Council’s Local 
Sustainable Transport Fund programme.

The Council budget for 2016/17 has not yet been finalised and it should be noted that the 
programme of works included in this document is an outline proposal.  The number of schemes 
delivered will be adapted as further information regarding the funding available for the 
programme becomes clear.  As with the development of this programme schemes will be added 
or deleted as required based on a clear “needs based” prioritisation basis.

28



6. IMPLICATIONS

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

The Highways Act 1980 provides that the highway authority for a highway maintainable at 
the public expense is under a duty to maintain the highway.  This requires that the 
highway has to be maintained so that it is reasonably passable by the ordinary traffic of 
the area.  Failure to identify a timely programme of works could result in a risk that the 
authority may not meet its legal duty to maintain the highway.

Additionally, failure to identify a timely programme of works could result in the Council 
being unable to deliver the 2016/17 LTP allocation in full. This may result in a reduced LTP 
allocation for subsequent financial years, impacting negatively on the authority’s highway 
network. 

In addition the legal implications of not approving the spend outlined in this document and 
the appendices may mean that the Council cannot meet the requirements of the Local 
Transport Plan 4, which sets out the strategic transport and highway priorities for 
Peterborough following a substantial period of consultation with stakeholders and partners. 

The legal and financial implications of approving the LTP Programme of Works 2016/17 
are that the highway network can be maintained thereby meeting the statutory duty to 
maintain the highway, and improvements can be carried out using grant funding from DfT 
(Department for Transport), thereby meeting the objectives set by the Local Transport 
Plan 4.

The programme relates to the city as a whole and therefore the implications are city-wide.

7. CONSULTATION

7.1 The Long Term Transport Strategy 2011-2026 (LTTS) and Local Transport Plan  2011-2016 
(LTP) was adopted by the Council on the 13 April 2011 following an extensive consultation with 
statutory consultees and a wide range of stakeholders. Furthermore consultation on 
Peterborough’s fourth LTP was completed in December 2015.The new document has been 
revised to align with current Council priorities and strategies whilst clearly defining how we will 
align with national transport goals. Appropriate consultation will be undertaken on individual 
schemes in the programme as required.

8. NEXT STEPS

8.1 The programme will be submitted to the Leader and Cabinet Member for Growth, Strategic 
Planning, Housing, Economic Development and Business Engagement for approval.

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

9.1 Peterborough Local Transport Plan 3 (2011- 2016) - http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/ltp

10. APPENDICES

10.1 Appendix A - The 2015/16 Integrated Transport Programme
Appendix B - The 2015/16 Highway Maintenance Programme
Appendix C - The 2015/16 Bridge Maintenance Programme

29

http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/ltp


This page is intentionally left blank

30



Draft Budget Head Scheme Description Budget

Eastfield Road adj Ashcroft Gardens

Eastfield Road opp Broadway junction

Eastfield Road adj Broadway Corner

Eastfield Road adj Padholme Road

Eastfield Road opp Padholme Road

Eastfield Road opp Princess Gardens

Eastfield Road adj Princes Gardens

Eastfield Road adj Newark Avenue

Lincoln Road near Maxey Road, Northborough

Lincoln Road adj Castle, Northborough

Real Time Passenger 

Information (RTPI)

Upgrade RPTI units to modern communication this may include upgrade of shelters to 

full RTPI compliance (City wide project).  Installation of RTPI where appropriate to 

accompany improvements to stops undertaken as part of Core Bus routes and 

Interchange and bus stop improvements programmes.

£60,000

Total £220,000

Eastfield Road corridor scheme including creation of advisory cycle lanes £312,000

Dogsthorpe Road including removal of guard railing 

Bishops Road cycleway improvements

Cycle Parking A number of locations city wide £10,000

Eastfield Road corridor scheme including dropped kerbs, removal of guard railing, alter 

the location of lamp columns, remove street clutter, improve footway conditions 

£120,000

Kingsley Road footway improvements

Westfield Road pedestrian crossing upgrades nr Lidl and Priory Road

Total £442,000

Intelligent Transport 

Systems (ITS)

Variable Message Signs (VMS) City wide improvements - awaiting outcome of a report £140,000

Total £140,000

Network 

Management  

Congestion “hot spot” 

treatment

Lincoln Road, Glinton study                                                                             City wide 

improvements from the outcome of journey time analysis

£100,000

Total £100,000

Lincoln Road jn 44 roundabout improvements

£160,000

Other sites being investigated based on SCRIM survey review and accident analysis

6 camera sites to be updated to digital

Zebra crossing upgrades on Whittlesey Road and St Pauls Road £60,000

Safer Journeys To School 

(SJTS)  

Gladstone Primary school improvements to address safety concerns

Hampton Gardens - footway and cycleway improvements along A15

Stanground College footway and cycleway improvements on Whittlesey Road

£200,000

Total £420,000

Accessibility Bus station improvements

City wide locations £40,000

Rights of Way 

Improvement Plan 

(ROWIP) 

implementation 

Various rights of way improvements across the authority area. £20,000

Innovative Travel Electric vehicle charging posts in the city centre £15,000

Business Grant 

Scheme

Match funding sustainable infrastructure for businesses to support sustainable travel 

including cycle parking, electric vehicle charging posts etc

£10,000

Total £105,000

Schemes and 

Studies
Scheme development and design for delivery 2017/2018 financial year 

£89,000

Total £89,000

Total Integrated Transport Programme for 2016/2017 £1,516,000

Dropped Kerb Programme 

Travel Security 

Accessibility and mobility 

improvements

£20,000

Core Bus routes £160,000

Local Safety 

Schemes

Appendix A - Integrated Transport Programme 2016/2017

Cycle NetworkWalking and Cycling 

Public Transport

Safer Roads

Walking infrastructure schemes

31



This page is intentionally left blank

32



HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE PROGRAMME 2016/17

LTP  £1,918k (Indicative budget)

Northborough Lincoln Road, Deeping Gate (40/Nat speed to Cty Bdy)

Longthorpe Holywell Way (Penyale to Thorpe Rd)

West Thorpe Park Rd (Audley Gate to Grange Rd)

Dogsthorpe Belvoir Way (Eye Rd to end)

Dogsthorpe/Park Newark Avenue (east - Nottingham Way to Eastern Ave)

Ravensthorpe Bretton Gate (Jct 62 Gresley Way to Jct 64 Cranford Drive)

Barnack Tallington Road, Bainton (B1443 Main St to Cty Bdy)

Glinton & Wittering Wittering Ford Road (Mill Rd Jct to A1)

Glinton & Wittering Marholm Road, Castor (A47 slip road to north of bend)

Orton with Hampton London Road (Jct 30 Phorpres Way to parkway bridge)

Fletton & Woodston London Road (Celta Rd to Rlwy bridge)

Eye & Thorney Whittlesey Road, Thorney (Hill Farm to Toneham Lane)

Eye & Thorney Falls Drove (French Drove to Cty Bdy)
Eye & Thorney Bell Drove (French Drove to Green Drove)

Newborough Willow Drove (B1443 to end)

Eye & Thorney, Newborough White Post Road South (A47 to end)

Eye & Thorney Hodney Road (Whitepost Rd to end) 

Newborough Wrights Drove (Peterborough Rd to end)

Barnack Kettering Road (Cty Bdy 30/40 to A1)

Werrington South A15 Paston Parkway (Jct 22 to 21) Reclamite rejuvination

Park Princes Street (Park Road to Dogsthorpe Road)  £                248,061.00 

Dogsthorpe Central Avenue (Chestnut Avenue to Eastern Avenue)  £                436,316.00 

Park / Central Dogsthorpe Road (Lincoln Road to Park Road)  £                391,636.00 

Stanground Central Fletton High Street (West end?)  £                306,944.00 

Walton Mountsteven Avenue (Fulbridge Road to Croyland Road) Reserve Scheme  £                               -   

-£                             

Scheme support inc design 20,000.00£                   

1,918,000.00£              

PCC Capital £578k (Indicative budget)

Glinton & Wittering Welmore Road, Glinton (High St to The Willows)

East Ashcroft Gardens (Reeves Way to Eastfield Road)

Dogsthorpe/Park Elmfield Road (Newark Road to Dogsthorpe)

West Thorpe Wood Rd (Jct 15 A47/A1260 to joint south of Woodman Pub)

West Audley Gate (Ledbury Road to joint south of Glammis Gardens)

West Lea Gardens (Thorpe Lea Road to End)

Stanground Ridgeway (Riverside Mead to End)

Ravensthorpe Hartwell Way (Brigstock Court to Odecroft)

Walton Cambrian Way (Hallfields Lane to End)

East Shire Grove (Concrete joint at No 2 to End)

East Bishops Close (Reeves Way to End)

East Whitsed Road (Padholme Rd to block paving)

Park St. Marys Close (Princes Gardens to end)

East Reeves Way (Joint near Eastfield Rd jct to Ashcroft Rd jct)

Stanground Central Coneygree Road (Anglian Close to Ellwood Avenue)

Stanground East Hemingford Crescent (entire length)

Stanground East Caldecote Close (entire length)

West Chatsworth Place 

West Doddington Drive

West Hardwick Court

West Suffolk Close

West Harewood Gardens (North end)

Fletton and Woodston New Road (London Road to Oundle Road)

Central Crawthorn Road

Central Monument Street

East Dickens Street

East Whalley Street

East Whitsed Street

East Charles Street

East Cavendish Street

East Eastfield Grove

Park Bedford Street

Park Vergette Street

Park Princes Gardens

Park St Mary's Close

Park Huntly Grove

Park Broadway 

Eye and Thorney Hodney Road

Eye and Thorney Tintern Rise

Eye and Thorney Beaulieu Court

Eye and Thorney St. Michaels Walk

Eye and Thorney Waltham Walk/Woad Court

Eye and Thorney Back Lane

-£                                 

Northborough B1162 Deeping St James Road (Peakirk Rd to Bridge) Resurface carriageway 36,000.00£                   

Fletton and Woodston Brewster Avenue Resurface footway 28,000.00£                   

North Robert Ave Resurface Footway 14,000.00£                   

Capital Gullies 65,000.00£                   

578,000.00£                 

Footway Slab replacement Ring fenced £230k (Indicative budget)

East Viney Close 55,000.00£                   

East Reeves Way (Viney Cl to Ashcroft Gdns) 25,000.00£                   

Stanground Central Rose Avenue (Chapel St to Thistle Dr) 15,000.00£                   

Dogsthorpe Beechwood Close (Eastern Ave to end) 35,000.00£                   

West Wilton Drive 26,000.00£                   

West Ledbury Road link path to Westward Grange (East of No2) 7,000.00£                     

Werrington South Shepherds Close (Hall Lane to end) 11,000.00£                   

Dogsthorpe Oakleaf Road 53,000.00£                   

North Crown Street Reserve Scheme -£                             

Consultant support 3,000.00£                     

230,000.00£                 

Ward Street  Estimated Cost 

Carriageway surface dressing 

treatment
515,043.00£                 

Resurface carriageway

Ward Street  Estimated Cost 

Carriageway micro- asphalt 

surface treatment
275,000.00£                 

Footway slurry seal surface 

treatment
160,000.00£                 

Ward Street  Estimated Cost 

CommentsDescription

The delivery of some proposed schemes 

may be affected by other work including 

utility projects being carried out on the 

Peterborough City Council highway 

network and may have to be deferred 

from the programme for this financial 

year. Should this be the case then the 

reserve scheme will be will be delivered 

or another scheme brought forward 

assuming funding needs are met.

The delivery of some proposed schemes 

may be affected by other work including 

utility projects being carried out on the 

Peterborough City Council highway 

network and may have to be deferred 

from the programme for this financial 

year. Should this be the case then the 

reserve scheme will be will be delivered 

or another scheme brought forward 

assuming funding needs are met.

Comments

Comments

The delivery of some proposed schemes 

may be affected by other work including 

utility projects being carried out on the 

Peterborough City Council highway 

network and may have to be deferred 

from the programme for this financial 

year. Should this be the case then the 

reserve scheme will be will be delivered 

or another scheme brought forward 

assuming funding needs are met.

Footway slab replacement

APPPENDIX B

33



PCC revenue £650K (Indicative budget)

Various SMART 375,000£                      

Various Inspector defined schemes 180,000£                      

Various Crack sealing 75,000£                        

Various Safety Fence (retension/upgrade) 20,000£                        

-£                                 

650,000£                      

Reserve Scheme To be delivered during 16/17 assuming budget can be found, otherwise to be deferred to future year

CommentsParish Street  Estimated Cost 

APPPENDIX B

34



Appendix C - Bridges Programme 2016/2017

Description Budget

Rural Improvement Schemes £30,000

Safety Improvements to minor substandard structures 30,000.00£            

Bridge Strengthening Package £664,000

A1139 Route joint replacement and associated works 250,000.00£          

A1260 Route joint replacement and associated works 150,000.00£          

Mill Rd Railway 20,000.00£            

Lolham Bridge No3 Refurbishment 70,000.00£            

South Drain Etton Parapet refurbishment 40,000.00£            

South Drain Cowpit Refurbishment 40,000.00£            

South Drain Nunton Lodge refurbishment 10,000.00£            

Guntons Rd Culvert strengthening 84,000.00£            

Major Improvements Package £135,000

Nene Thorpe Half joint durability improvement 25,000.00£            

Town River Bridge elevations refurbishment 50,000.00£            

Crescent bridge refurbishment package 35,000.00£            

Subway Improvements 25,000.00£            

Footbridge Safety Schemes £137,500

Oundle Rd footbridge painting 12,500.00£            

Queensgate Footbridge 40,000.00£            

Westwood footbridge pier top concrete repairs 85,000.00£            

Total £966,500

Note:  The scope of work within the project may vary within 

the indicated budget such that the overall budget is not 

exceeded.

35



This page is intentionally left blank

36



SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT 
CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 8

25 JANUARY 2016 Public Report

Report of the Director of Governance

Report Author – Paulina Ford, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Contact Details – 01733 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk

FORWARD PLAN OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

1. PURPOSE

1.1 This is a regular report to the Sustainable Growth and Environment Capital Scrutiny Committee 
outlining the content of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the Committee identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions is attached at Appendix A.  The 
Forward Plan contains those Executive decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that 
the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Member(s) can take and any new Executive decisions to be 
taken after 8 February 2016.

3.2 The information in the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions provides the Committee with the 
opportunity of considering whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these Executive 
decisions, or to request further information.

3.3 If the Committee wished to examine any of the Executive decisions, consideration would need to 
be given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme.

3.4 As the Forward Plan is published fortnightly any version of the Forward Plan published after 
dispatch of this agenda will be tabled at the meeting.

4. CONSULTATION

4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions.

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

None

6. APPENDICES

Appendix A – Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 

37



This page is intentionally left blank

38



 
 

PETERBOROUGH CITY  
COUNCIL’S FORWARD PLAN 
OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS  

 
 
 
 

PUBLISHED:  8 JANUARY 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A

39



 
 
 
 
 

FORWARD PLAN                                                                                                                                     AB 

PART 1 – KEY DECISIONS 

In the period commencing 28 clear days after the date of publication of this Plan, Peterborough City Council's Executive intends to take 'key decisions' on the issues set out below 
in Part 1.  Key decisions relate to those executive decisions which are likely to result in the Council spending or saving money in excess of £500,000 and/or have a significant 
impact on two or more wards in Peterborough. 
 
If the decision is to be taken by an individual Cabinet Member, the name of the Cabinet Member is shown against the decision, in addition to details of the Councillor’s portfolio. If 
the decision is to be taken by the Cabinet, this too is shown against the decision and its members are as listed below: 
Cllr Holdich (Leader); Cllr Coles; Cllr Elsey; Cllr Fitzgerald (Deputy Leader); Cllr Hiller, Cllr Lamb; Cllr North; Cllr Seaton; Cllr Serluca. 
 
This Plan should be seen as an outline of the proposed decisions for the forthcoming month and it will be updated on a fortnightly basis to reflect new key-decisions.  Each new 
Plan supersedes the previous Plan and items may be carried over into forthcoming Plans.  Any questions on specific issues included on the Plan should be included on the form 
which appears at the back of the Plan and submitted to Gemma George, Democratic Services Manager, Governance Department, Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 
388039). Alternatively, you can submit your views via e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268. For each decision a public report will be 
available from the Governance Team one week before the decision is taken. 
 
PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISION IN PRIVATE 
Whilst the majority of the Executive’s business at the Cabinet meetings listed in this Plan will be open to the public and media organisations to attend, there will be some business 
to be considered that contains, for example, confidential, commercially sensitive or personal information.  In these circumstances the meeting may be held in private, and on the 
rare occasion this applies, notice will be given within Part 2 of this document, ‘notice of intention to hold meeting in private’. A further formal notice of the intention to hold the 
meeting, or part of it, in private, will also be given 28 clear days in advance of any private meeting in accordance with The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings 
and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.  

 
The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which these decisions will be discussed (unless a notice of intention to hold the meeting in private has 
been given). 
 
PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS 
For complete transparency relating to the work of the Executive, this Plan also includes an overview of non-key decisions to be taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members, 
these decisions are listed at Part 3 and will be updated on a weekly basis. 
 
You are entitled to view any documents listed on the Plan, or obtain extracts from any documents listed or subsequently submitted to the decision maker prior to the decision 
being made, subject to any restrictions on disclosure. There is no charge for viewing the documents, although charges may be made for photocopying or postage.  Documents 
listed on the notice and relevant documents subsequently being submitted can be requested from Gemma George, Democratic Services Manager, Governance Department, 
Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 388038), e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268.  

 
All decisions will be posted on the Council's website: www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedeisions. If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the 'key decisions' 
outlined in this Plan, please submit them to the Democratic Services Manager using the form attached.  For your information, the contact details for the Council's various service 
departments are incorporated within this Plan. 
 

APPENDIX A

40



PART 1 – FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
 

KEY DECISIONS FROM 8 FEBRUARY 2016 

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

Savings and Investment: 
Children’s Social Care - 
KEY/08FEB16/01 
For Cabinet to agree the 
transformation plan for 
Children’s Social Care. 
 

Cabinet 
 

8 February  
2016 
 

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities 
 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Lou Williams 
Service Director 
Children’s Services and 
Safeguarding 
Tel: 01733 864139 
Lou.williams@peterbor
ough.gov.uk  
 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Community Based 
Supported Living 
Service – 
KEY/08FEB16/02 
To award a 1 year 
contract for the period 1 
April 2016 to 31 March 
2017 to Turning Point Ltd 
to provide the Community 
Based Supported Living 
Service. 

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald 
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated Adult 
Social Care and 
Health 

March 2016 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Mubarak Darbar 
Interim Head of 
Learning Disability 
Commissioning  
Tel: 01733 452509 
Mubarak.darbar@peter
borough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

  

APPENDIX A

41



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

PREVIOUSLY ADVERTISED DECISIONS 

Delivery of the Council's 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
Sale of Dickens Street 
Car Park - KEY/03JUL/11 
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate Director 
Resources, the Corporate 
Property Officer and the 
Cabinet Member Resources, 
to negotiate and conclude 
the sale of Dickens Street 
Car Park.  
For Cabinet to consider 
future options for service 
delivery.  

Councillor David 
Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 
 

January  
2016 
 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
 

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
Councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate. 
 
 

Richard Hodgson 
Head of Strategic 
Projects 
Tel: 01733 384535 
richard.hodgson@peter
borough.gov.uk 
 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

  

APPENDIX A

42



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS /  
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

Sale of the Herlington 
Centre - 
KEY/21MAR14/03 
Delivery of the Council’s 
capital receipts 
programme through the 
sale of the Herlington 
Centre, Orton Malborne. 

Councillor David 
Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 
 

January  
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Simon Webber 
Capital Projects Officer 
Tel: 01733 384545 
simon.webber@peterb
orough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Formalise Integrated 
Community Equipment 
Service Funding and 
Commissioning 
Arrangements - 
KEY/18APR14/01 
To formalise integrated 
community equipment 
service joint funding 
arrangements. 

Councillor 
Wayne Fitzgerald 
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated Adult 
Social Care and 
Health 
 

January  
2016 

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Nick Blake 
Head of Commissioning 
for Older People, 
Physical Disabilities and 
Sensory Impairment 
Tel: 01733 452406 
nick.blake@peterboroug
h.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Award of Contract for 
Build of a Waste Transfer 
Station - KEY/18APR14/02 
To award a contract for the 
build of a waste transfer 
station. 

Councillor Gavin 
Elsey 
Cabinet Member 
for Digital, Waste 
and Street Scene  

January  
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Paul Robertson 
Waste Project Officer 
Tel: 01733 864740 
paul.robertson@peterbo
rough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Print Managed Services - 
KEY/13JUN14/01 
To enable Council officers 
to be able to print, copy and 
scan. 

Councillor David 
Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 
 

January  
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Vicki Palazon 
Financial Services 
Manager – Planning and 
Reporting 
Tel: 01733 864104 
Vicki.palazon@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

APPENDIX A

43



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

Selective Licensing - 
KEY/17OCT14/01 
To improve standards and 
management of properties 
in the private rented sector. 
 

Councillor Peter 
Hiller 
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing & 
Economic 
Development  

January 
2016 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

Belinda Child 
Head of Housing and 
Health Improvement 
Tel: 01733 863769 
Belinda.child@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Classroom Extension 
and Associated Works 
Heltwate School - 
KEY/06MAR15/01 
To authorise the construction 
of an extension at Heltwate 
School and give authority to 
the Executive Director of 
Resources to award the 
construction contract within 
the approved budget. 
 

Councillor John 
Holdich 
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University 
 

January  
2016 

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities 
 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Alison Chambers 
Assets and School 
Place Planning Officer 
Tel: 01733 863975 
Alison.chambers@pete
rborough.gov.uk 
 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Wirrina Car Park – 
KEY/06MAR15/10 
Disposal of Wirrina Car 
Park to Peterborough 
Investment Partnership. 

Councillor David 
Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 

January  
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Richard Hodgson, 
Head of Strategic 
Projects 
01733 384535 
Richard.hodgson@pete
rborough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

APPENDIX A

44



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

Real Time Passenger 
Information – 
KEY/10JUL15/02 
To approve the expansion 
and maintenance contract. 

Councillor Peter 
Hiller 
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing & 
Economic 
Development  
 

January  
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and External 
stakeholders. 

Amy Pickstone 
Senior ITS Officer 
Tel: 01733 317481 
Amy.pickstone@peterb
orough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Delivery of the Council’s 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
sale of Welland House, 
Dogsthorpe – 
KEY/24JUL15/01 
To authorise the sale of 
Welland House, 
Dogsthorpe. 

Councillor David 
Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 

January  
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 

Simon Webber 
Strategic Projects 
Officer 
Tel: 01733 384545 
Simon.webber@peterb
orough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

  

APPENDIX A

45



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

Delivery of the Council’s 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
sale of Pyramid Centre, 
Bretton North – 
KEY/24JUL15/02 
To authorise the sale of 
the Pyramid Centre, 
Bretton North. 

Councillor David 
Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 

January  
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 

Gareth Dawkins 
Capital Projects Officer 
Tel: 01733 384618 
Gareth.dawkins@peter
borough.gov.uk  

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 
 
The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding 
that information). 

 

Sale of Land at Rear of 
Braybrook School, Orton 
Longueville – 
KEY/24JUL15/03 

To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate 
Director Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate 
and conclude the sale of 
Land. 

Councillor David 
Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 

January  
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 

Brian Davies 
Sales and Acquisitions 
Tel: 01733 384547 
Brian.davies@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

APPENDIX A

46



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

Sale of the Lindens, 
Lincoln Road – 
KEY/24JUL15/04 

To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate 
Director Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate 
and conclude the sale. 

Councillor David 
Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 

January  
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 

Brian Davies 
Sales and Acquisitions 
Tel: 01733 384547 
Brian.davies@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Sale of Bretton Court, 
Bretton North – 
KEY/24JUL15/05 

To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate 
Director Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate 
and conclude the sale. 

Councillor David 
Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 

January  
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 

Brian Davies 
Sales and Acquisitions 
Tel: 01733 384547 
Brian.davies@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

  

APPENDIX A

47



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

Expansion by One Form 
of Entry to Jack Hunt 
Secondary School – 
KEY/07AUG15/02 
To approve expansion by 
1 form of entry of Jack 
Hunt Secondary School to 
include award of building 
contracts for the required 
enhancement of facilities 
and any legal changes to 
the schools PFI contract.  
 

Councillor John 
Holdich 
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University 

January  
2016 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Brian Howard 
Head of Schools 
Infrastructure 
Tel: 01733 863976 
Brian.howard@peterbo
rough.gov.uk 
 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Changes to the 
Council’s Adult Social 
Care Charging Policy – 
KEY/21AUG15/03 
Consultation around 
proposed changes to the 
Council’s charging policy in 
recognition of the statutory 
obligations and powers 
introduced by the Care Act 
2014. 

Cabinet 
 

18 January  
2016 
 

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

Mark Gedney 
Financial Systems 
Manager 
Tel: 01733 452335 
Mark.gedney@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Draft Housing Strategy – 
KEY/21SEPT15/03 
For Cabinet to approve 
the Strategy for public 
consultation. 

Cabinet March / 
April 2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Anne Keogh 
Housing and Strategic 
Planning Manager 
Anne.keogh1@peterbo
rough.gov.uk 
Tel: 01733 863815 
 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

  

APPENDIX A

48



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

Council Tax and NNDR – 
KEY/13NOV15/01  
To agree the calculation of 
the Council Tax base for 
2016/17 and the NNDR1 
return. 

Cabinet 
 

18 January 
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Steven Pilsworth 
Service Director 
Financial Services 
Tel: 01733 384564 
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk 
 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 
 

Passenger Transport 
Services AMEY – 
KEY/27NOV15/01 
To approve the award of 
six routes to Amey under 
the existing contract 
arrangements.  

Councillor John 
Holdich 
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University 

January  
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 

Sara Thompson 
Team Manager, 
Passenger Transport 
Operations 
Tel: 01733 317452 
Sara.thompson@peter
borough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 
 
The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person 
(including the authority 
holding 
that information). 

  

APPENDIX A

49



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

Intelligent Transport 
Systems Infrastructure – 
KEY/11DEC15/01 
To introduce the use of 
Variable Message Signs 
(VMS) on the road 
network to provide real-
time driver information. 

Councillor Peter 
Hiller 
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development 
 

December 
2015 to Mar 
2016 
 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 

Peter Tebb 
Network and Traffic 
Manager 
Tel: 01733 453519 
Peter.tebb@peterborou
gh.gov.uk  
 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 
 
The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person 
(including the authority 
holding 
that information). 

Direct Payment Support 
Service – 
KEY/11DEC15/02 
To approve the direct 
payment support service. 
 

Councillor 
Fitzgerald 
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated Adult 
Social Care and 
Health 

May 2016 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Jenny Beasley 
Commissioning 
Manager 
Tel: 01733 452482 
Jenny.beasley@peterb
orough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 
 
The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person 
(including the authority 
holding 
that information). 

APPENDIX A

50



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

Offtake Arrangements 
for Power from the 
Energy Recovery 
Facility – 
KEY/25DEC15/01  
To approve putting into 
place arrangements for 
the sale of heat and/or 
electricity from the Energy 
Recovery Facility. 

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey 
Cabinet Member 
for Digital, 
Waste and 
Street Scene 

January  
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital  

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Richard Pearn 
Waste Partnership 
Manager 
Tel: 01733 864739 
Richard.pearn@peterb
orough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 
 
The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding 
that information). 

 

Delegation of Authority 
under the ASB, Crime 
and Policing Act 2014 to 
Registered Social 
Landlords – 
KEY/25DEC15/02 
To authorise 
Peterborough City Council 
to designate authority to 
registered social landlords 
to enforce Part 4 Sections 
43-48 of the Anti-social 
Behaviour, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014. 

Councillor Nigel 
North 
Cabinet Member 
for Communities 
and 
Environment 
Capital 

January 
2016 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 
including social 
landlords through 
the Peterborough 
Registered Social 
Landlord Forum 

Laura Kelsey 
Anti-Social Behaviour 
Co-ordinator 
Tel: 01733 453563 
Laura.kelsey@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 
 

APPENDIX A

51



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

Extension of 
Expenditure with 
Providers on the 
Homecare Framework – 
KEY/11JAN16/01 
To authorise the extension 
of expenditure with 
providers on the 
homecare framework 
agreement, in line with 
current terms and 
conditions. 

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald 
Cabinet Member 
for Integrated 
Adult Social 
Care and Health 
 

January  
2016 
 

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 

Jenny Beasley, 
Commissioning 
Manager, 
Tel: 01733 452482 
jenny.beasley@peterbo
rough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Peterborough Highway 
Services Contract – 
KEY/11JAN16/02 
To award major transport 
schemes to Skanska to 
deliver via the 
Peterborough Highways 
Services Contract. 

Councillor Peter 
Hiller 
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development 

January 
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Amy Petrie 
Principal Programme 
and Project Officer 
Tel: 01733 452272 
Amy.petrie@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Skills Strategy - 
KEY/25JAN16/01 
For Cabinet to approve 
the Skills Strategy. 

Cabinet 
 

8 February 
2016 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 
 
 

Wendi Ogle-Welbourn 
Corporate Director 
People and 
Communities 
Tel: 01733 863749 
Wendi.ogle-
welbourn@peterboroug
h.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

APPENDIX A

52



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

Review of Emergency 
Stopping Places – 
KEY/25JAN16/02 
For Cabinet to review 
existing and proposed 
emergency stopping 
places. 
 

Cabinet 29 February 
2016 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Belinda Child 
Head of Housing and 
Health Improvement 
Tel: 01733 863769 
Belinda.child@peterbor
ough.gov.uk  

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Extension to the 
Framework Agreement 
for the Supply of Social 
Care Temporary Agency 
Workers – 
KEY/25JAN16/03 
For the Cabinet Member 
to approve the extension 
to the framework 
agreement. 

Councillor David 
Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 

February 
2016 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

James Fordham 
Recruitment and 
Retention Officer 
Tel: 01733 864581 
James.fordham@peter
borough.gov.uk  

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Provision of Non Social 
Care Temporary Agency 
Workers – 
KEY/25JAN16/04 
To approve the provision 
of temporary agency 
workers. 

Councillor David 
Seaton 
Cabinet Member 
for Resources 

February 
2016 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

James Fordham 
Recruitment and 
Retention Officer 
Tel: 01733 864581 
James.fordham@peter
borough.gov.uk  

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

APPENDIX A

53



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

Commissioning of Care 
and Nursing Homes – 
KEY/25JAN16/05 
For the Cabinet Member 
to consider a new 
Contract for the 
commissioning of Care 
and Nursing Homes under 
the Choice Directives LA 
circular 2004, ADASS 
Terms and Conditions. 

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald 
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated 
Social Care and 
Health 

February 
2016 

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Susan Street 
Head of Older People 
Commissioning 
Tel: 01733 452486 
Susan.street@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

APPENDIX A

54



PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISIONS IN PRIVATE 
 

KEY DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN IN PRIVATE 
 

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED 

DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER  

NONE AT THE CURRENT TIME 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A

55



PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS 
 

NON-KEY DECISIONS  
 

DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

Treatment of War 
Disablement Pension – 
Adult Social Care 
Charging 
To consider whether to 
disregard the war 
disablement pension in 
the social care financial 
assessment.  

Cabinet January / 
February 
2016 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Wendi Ogle-Welbourn 
Corporate Director 
People & Communities 
Tel: 01733 863749 
Wendi.ogle-
welbourn@peterboroug
h.gov.uk  

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Communities Strategy – 
To approve the Council’s 
Communities Strategy. 
 

Cabinet 8 February 
2016 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Ian Phillips 
Social Inclusion 
Manager 
Tel: 01733 863849 
Ian.phillips@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk 
 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Citizens Advice Bureau 
Funding – 
To fund Citizens Advice 
Bureau £3731 until March 
2016 (via DWP grant 
funding) to deliver 
Personal Budgeting 
Support to new UC 
claimants requiring 
assistance. 

Councillor 
David Seaton 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources 

January  
2016 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Ian Phillips 
Social Inclusion 
Manager 
Tel: 01733 863849 
Ian.phillips@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

APPENDIX A

56



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

Vivacity Funding – 
To fund Vivacity £1278 
until March 2016 (via 
DWP grant funding) to 
provide digital support for 
UC claimants to make 
benefit claims online at 
Central Library. 

Councillor 
David Seaton 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources 

January  
2016 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Ian Phillips 
Social Inclusion 
Manager 
Tel: 01733 863849 
Ian.phillips@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Council Tax Support 
Scheme 2016/2017 
Recommendation –  
To recommend the 
Council Tax Support 
scheme to Council. 
 

Cabinet 18 January 
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Steven Pilsworth 
Service Director 
Financial Services 
Tel: 01733 384564 
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk 
 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 
 

Budget Proposals 
Second Tranche 
Consideration – To 
approve the consultation 
on the second tranche of 
Budget Proposals. 

Cabinet 8 February 
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Steven Pilsworth 
Service Director 
Financial Services 
Tel: 01733 384564 
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Budget Proposals 
Second Tranche 
Recommendation –  
To recommend the 
second tranche of budget 
proposals to Council. 

Cabinet 29 February 
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Steven Pilsworth 
Service Director 
Financial Services 
Tel: 01733 384564 
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

APPENDIX A

57



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

Local Transport Plan – 
To recommend approval 
to Council of the fourth 
Local Transport Plan. 

Cabinet 
 

18 January 
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant Internal 
and External 
Stakeholders 

Lewis Banks 
Principal Transport 
Planning Officer 
Tel: 01733 317465 
Lewis.banks@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Extension to Sutton 
Conservation Area – For 
the Cabinet Member to 
approve the extension. 

Councillor 
Peter Hiller 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development 

January  
2016 

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Jim Daley 
Principal Built 
Environment Officer 
Tel: 01733 453522 
Jim.daly@peterboroug
h.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 
 

Vivacity Premier Fitness 
Invest to Save Scheme -  
To authorise investment in 
developing Vivacity 
Premier Fitness on an 
invest to save basis 

Councillor 
David Seaton 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources 

January  
2016 

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

John Harrison 
Corporate Director 
Resources 
Tel: 01733 452520 
John.harrison@peterbo
rouh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 
 
The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding 
that information). 

 

APPENDIX A

58



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER 
 

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED 

RELEVANT  
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS 

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION 

Extension of Current 
Adult Social Care 
Contracts – To approve 
the extension of Mental 
Health Employment, 
Wellbeing and Recovery 
Services contracts from 1 
October 2015 and 30 Nov 
2016 due to 
reconfiguration of the 
contract. 

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald 
Deputy 
Leader and 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 

January  
2016 

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Mubarak Darbar 
Head of 
Commissioning 
Learning Disabilities 
Tel: 01733 452509 
Mubarak.darbar@peter
borough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

 

Delegation of Authority - 
To delegate authority for 
funding governance 
arrangements for care 
placements for Looked 
After Children to the 
Service Director – 
Safeguarding and 
Children for a period of 12 
months. 

Councillor 
Andy Coles 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Children’s 
Services 

January  
2016 

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders. 

Helene Carr 
Head of Service, 
Access to Resources 
and Specialist 
Commissioning  
Tel: 01733 863901 
Helene.car@peterboro
gh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

Personal Budgets in 
Peterborough -  
To agree to adopt 
Peterborough’s Personal 
Budget Policy Statement 
as part of the revised 
statutory duties that apply 
to the Council as part of 
the SEND reforms, under 
the Children and Families 
Act 2014. 

Councillor 
John Holdich 
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, 
Skills and 
University 
 

January  
2016 

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 

Carrie Gamble 
Commissioner 
Tel: 01733 863931 
Carrie.gamble@peterb
orough.gov.uk 
 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published. 

APPENDIX A

59



DIRECTORATE RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
RESOURCES DEPARTMENT Executive Director's Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG 
Strategic Finance 
Internal Audit 
Schools Infrastructure (Assets and School Place Planning) 
Corporate Property 
Waste and Energy 
Strategic Client Services (Enterprise Peterborough / Vivacity / SERCO including Customer Services, ICT and Business Support) 
 
PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Bayard Place, Broadway, PE1 1FB 
Adult Services and Communities (Adult Social Care Operations, Adult Social Care and Quality Assurance, Adult Social Care Commissioning, Early Help – Adults, 
Children and Families, Housing and Health Improvement, Community and Safety Services, Offender Services) 
Children’s Services and Safeguarding (Children’s Social Care Operations, Children’s Social Care Quality Assurance, Safeguarding Boards – Adults and 
Children’s, Child Health, Clare Lodge (Operations), Access to Resources) 
Education, People Resources and Corporate Property (Special Educational Needs and Inclusion, School Improvement, City College Peterborough, Pupil Referral 
Units, Schools Infrastructure) 
Business Management and Commercial Operations (Commissioning, Recruitment and Retention, Clare Lodge (Commercial), Early Years and Quality 
Improvement) 
 
GOVERNANCE DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG 
Legal and Democratic Services  
Human Resources (Business Relations, HR Policy and Rewards, Training and Development, Occupational Health and Workforce Development) 
City Services and Communications (Markets and Street Trading, City Centre Management including Events, Regulatory Services, Parking Services, Vivacity 
Contract, CCTV and Out of Hours Calls, Marketing and Communications, Tourism and Bus Station, Resilience) 
Performance and Information (Performance Management, Information Governance, Systems Support Team, Coroner’s Office, Freedom of Information) 
 

  GROWTH AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT Director’s Office Stuart House, St Johns Street, Peterborough, PE1 5DD 
Development and Construction (Development Management, Planning Compliance, Building Control) 
Sustainable Growth Strategy (Strategic Planning, Housing Strategy and Affordable Housing, Climate Change and Environment Capital, Natural and Built 
Environment) 
Opportunity Peterborough 
Peterborough Highway Services (Network Management, Highways Maintenance, Street Naming and Numbering, Street Lighting, Design and Adoption of Roads, 
Drainage and Flood Risk Management, Transport Policy and Sustainable Transport, Public Transport) 
Peterborough Investment Partnership 
 
PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG 
 

APPENDIX A

60



ITEM 9 – Work Programme

SUSTAINABLE GROWTH AND ENVIRONMENT CAPITAL SCRUTINY COMMITTEE Updated: 15 JANUARY 2016
WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16

Meeting Date Item NOTES

Growth and Regeneration Directorate  Overview 

Contact Officer:  Richard Kay
Establishment of Task and Finish Group to review Housing Strategy

Contact Officer:  Anne Keogh

10 June 2015
Draft Report 22 May

Final Report 29 May

Review of 2014/15 and Future Work Programme 2015/2016
To review the work undertaken during 2014/15 and to consider the future 
work programme of the Committee.

Contact Officer:  Paulina Ford

PCC Biodiversity Strategy 2014/15 Annual Report

Contact Officer:  James Fisher 
Local Transport Plan

Contact Officer:  Andy Tatt

16 July 2015
Draft Report 29 June

Final Report 6 July

Street Lighting Replacement Programme

Contact Officer: Andy Tatt

61



ITEM 9 – Work Programme

Meeting Date Item NOTES

Amey Annual Partnership Report

Contact Officer:  Martin Raper / James Collingridge
Major Highway Schemes and Contract Reports

Contact Officer:  Michael Stevenson / Andy Tatt

15 September 2015
Draft Report 27 Aug

Final Report 3 Sept

Serco Partnership Performance  Report 2014/2015

Contact Officer:  Paul Richards  / Steven Pilsworth

Update On Peterborough City Council’s 2014/15 Carbon Emissions As 
Submitted Under Different Reporting Requirements

To Scrutinise the Peterborough City Council’s 2013/14 carbon dioxide 
emissions report and make any recommendations necessary.

Contact Officer:  Charlotte Palmer

12 November 2015
Draft Report 26 Oct

Final Report 2 Nov

Portfolio Progress Report from the Cabinet Member for Communities 
and Environment Capital including Environment Capital Annual Report
To scrutinise and comment on the progress of the portfolio of the Cabinet 
Member

Contact Officer:  Charlotte Palmer

62



ITEM 9 – Work Programme

Meeting Date Item NOTES

Portfolio Progress Report from the Cabinet Member for Digital, Waste 
and Street Scene
To scrutinise and comment on the progress of the portfolio of the Cabinet 
Member.

Revised Peterborough Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)

Contact Officer:  Gemma Wildman

Added at the request of the officer on 11 August. 
Approved by Chair and Group Representatives.

Peterborough Preliminary Draft of Local Plan 

Contact Officer:  Gemma Wildman

26 November 2015
(Joint Meeting of 
the Scrutiny 
Committees and 
Commissions) 

Budget 2016/17 and Medium Term Financial Strategy to 2025/26 Phase 
One
To scrutinise the Executive’s proposals for the Budget 2016/17 and Medium 
Term Financial Plan 2025/26.

Contact Officer:  John Harrison/Steven Pilsworth 

Local Transport Plan Programme of Works 2016/17

To consider the Local Transport Plan Programme of Works for 2016/2017.

Contact Officer:  Lewis Banks / Andy Tatt

25 January 2016
Draft Report 6 Jan 

Final Report 13 Jan

Housing Strategy Review Task And Finish Group Report

Contact:  Cllr Thulbourn / Anne Keogh

63



ITEM 9 – Work Programme

Meeting Date Item NOTES

Portfolio Progress Report for the Cabinet Member for Growth, 
Planning, Housing and Economic Development

To scrutinise and comment on the progress of the portfolio of the Cabinet 
Member.

10  February 2016
(Joint Meeting of 
the Scrutiny 
Committees and 
Commissions) 

Budget 2016/17 and Medium Term Financial Strategy to 2025/26 Phase 
Two
To scrutinise the Executive’s proposals for the Budget 2016/17 and Medium 
Term Financial Plan 2025/26.

Contact Officer:  John Harrison/Steven Pilsworth 

Opportunity Peterborough Annual Progress Report 

Contact Officer:  Steve Bowyer

Local Enterprise Partnership – Outcomes and Objectives

Contact Officer:  Neil Darwin

23 March 2016
Draft Report 4 March

Final Report 11 
March

HR Update Report 

Contact Officer: Jan Paxton

To be programmed in 2016/2017:

64



ITEM 9 – Work Programme

Peterborough Highway Service Annual Report 2016/17 - Contact Officer:  Andy Tatt / Andrew Denman

65



T
his page is intentionally left blank

66


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Meeting held on 12 November 2015
	5 Portfolio Progress Report for the Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing and Economic Development
	6 Task and Finish Group Report - Review of Peterborough Strategic Housing Strategy
	6. Appendix A - Housing Strategy Review Task and Finish Group Report
	6. Appendix B - Housing Strategy Review Task and Finish Group Report

	7 Local Transport Plan Programme of Works 2016/17
	7. Appendix A - Local Transport Plan Programme of Works 2016/17
	7. Appendix B - Local Transport Plan Programme of Works 2016/17
	7. Appendix C - Local Transport Plan Programme of Works 2016/17

	8 Forward Plan of Executive Decisions
	8. Appendix A - Forward Plan of Executive Decisions Cover - 160125 - SG&ECSC

	9 Work Programme



